
Policy Council Executive Committee Agenda  Page 1 of 2 

  

Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by Community Services Bureau 
to a majority of members of the Head Start Policy Council less than 72 hours prior to that meeting are available for public inspection at: 
3068 Grant St. Bldg. 8, Concord, CA 94520 during normal business hours. (Gov. Code, section 54957.5(b) (2)).  

 

Agenda 
 

Group/Meeting Name:    CSB Policy Council Executive Meeting 

Date:  April 3, 2024 Time: 6:00 – 6:30 PM 

Meeting Location:  1470 Civic Court Suite 200, Concord CA 94520 – CSB Administrative Building 
 
Meeting Leader:  Juan De Dios Batiz-PC Chair 

Purpose:  To Review Policy Council Items for Next Meeting 
 

The Community Services Bureau of Contra Costa County will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to 
participate in Policy Council meetings or subcommittee meetings. Please contact Ana Araujo at least 48 hours before the meeting at (925) 
864-0837 or at aaraujo@ehsd.cccounty.us or you may contact the Federal Information Relay Service at 1-800-877-8339 for Teletypewriter 
communication assistance. 

 

Desired Outcomes:  By the end of this meeting, we will have: 
 

1. Agreement on desired outcomes and ground rules so that our meeting is productive. 
2. Opportunity for the public to address the CSB Policy Council and share thoughts and ideas that may 

impact their work and the community’s needs. 
3. Understanding of staff reports so that the group is informed of bureau highlights and other 

important events. 
4. Approval of February 7, 2024, Executive Meeting minutes so that we have an accurate record of 

the meeting. 

5. A review of the February 21, 2024; March 6, 2024; and March 18, 2024, PC Minutes. 

6. A decision regarding Parent Recognition of staff nomination recipients. 

7. Agreement on the agenda April 17, 2024, Policy Council meeting. 

8. Evaluation of the meeting so we may review our strengths and make any necessary improvements. 
 
 

Agenda 

What 
(Content) 

How 
(Process) Who 

Time 
(Minutes) 

1. Review Desired Outcomes Present Juan De Dios Batiz 1 

Review Meeting Ground 
Rules 

Present Gabriela Gomar 1 

2. Public Comments Present Public 1  

3. Report: 
Staff Reports-Program 

Present 
Clarify 

Check for understanding 
Michelle Mankewich 5 

mailto:aaraujo@ehsd.cccounty.us


Policy Council Executive Committee Agenda  Page 2 of 2 

Agenda 

What 
(Content) 

How 
(Process) Who 

Time 
(Minutes) 

4. Action: 
Review and Approve 
February 7, 2024, 
Executive Meeting Minutes 

Present 
Clarify 

Check for understanding 
Check for Agreement 

Karen Medrano 4 

5. Action: 
Review February 21, 2024, 
March 6, 2024, and March 
18, 2024, PC Minutes 

Present 
Clarify 

Check for understanding 
Check for Agreement 

Karen Medrano 5 

 
6. Review and Decide on Parent 

Recognition of Staff 

Present  
Clarify 

Check for understanding 
Check for Agreement  

Executive Team 7 

 
7. Set Agenda for April 17, 2024, 

Policy Council Meeting 

Present 
Clarify 

Check for Understanding 
All 5 

8. Meeting Evaluation Plus/Delta Volunteer 1 
 
 PUBLIC ACCESS AND PUBLIC COMMENT INSTRUCTIONS:  

 
The public may attend this meeting in person at the above location. The public also may attend this meeting remotely via Zoom or call-in. 
Login information and call-in information is provided below. 
 

• HOW TO JOIN THE MEETING VIA ZOOM: 
Zoom Meeting ID: 832 0122 7641 Password: 962298 

• HOW TO JOIN THE MEETING VIA CALL-IN: 
Conference Call: USA 8882780254 8882780254 (US Toll Free) Conference Code: 379008 

 
 
HOW TO PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Persons who wish to address the CSB Policy Council during public comment on matters within the jurisdiction of the CSB Policy Council that 
are not on the agenda, or who wish to comment with respect to an item on the agenda, may comment in person, via Zoom, or via call-in. 
Those participating in person should come to the podium when called upon. Those participating via Zoom should indicate they wish to speak 
by using the “raise your hand” feature in the Zoom app. Those calling in should indicate they wish to speak by pushing *9 on their phone. 

All public comments will be limited to 2 minutes per speaker. 

For assistance with remote access contact: (925) 864-0837 

Public comments may also be submitted before the meeting by email at aaraujo@ehsd.cccounty.us or by voicemail at (925) 864-0837. 
Comments submitted by email or voicemail will be included in the record of the meeting but will not be read or played aloud during the 
meeting. 

 
 
 

mailto:aaraujo@ehsd.cccounty.us


 Contra Costa County 
EHSD – Community Services Bureau 

Head Start Policy Council Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 
Location: 1470 Civic Court, Suite 200  

Policy Council Executive Committee Meeting Minutes -Approved date: Page 1 of 2 

Date: 2-7-24 Time Convened 6:13 p.m.               Time Terminated 6:43 p.m.             Recorder: Lilian Recinos 
 
Attendees: Juan Batiz, TuLiisa Miller, Karen Medrano, Michelle Mankewich, Christina Reich, and Ana Araujo 
Absentees: No one 

TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 

• Review Desired Outcomes 
and Ground Rules 

• Juan Batiz Vice Chair, called the meeting to order at 6:13 p.m. 
• Juan Batiz, Vice Chair reviewed the desired outcomes. 
• TuLiisa Miller, Parliamentarian, reviewed the meeting ground rules. 

• Public Comments None 

• Staff Reports   Michelle Mankewich, Administrative Services Assistant III, provided updates 
on the following items: 
• CSB held a successful hiring event in partnership with the Brentwood 

Library, 7 candidates were interviewed on the spot, and we are hopefully 
to move forward with hiring.  

• As CSB continues its full enrollment efforts, I am pleased to share we have 
enrolled 21 new students since January 1st, 2024.  We strive to reach full 
enrollment in all our classrooms.  

• Congressman Garamendi visited George Miller III, he and his team were 
able to see all the glory that Head Start has to offer, from mealtime to 
reading books to singing and dancing!   We sent him home to Washington 
DC with the memories and stories to continue his advocacy for the Head 
Start program.  

• Our Grant application is moving along, we hope to have all the major 
points solidified in early March.  Watch for a special invitation for an early 
Policy Council meeting for review and approval of the grant application.  
 

• Discussion: 
Executive Team Vacancy 

• The Executive team reviewed the PC Bylaws and identified procedures to 
fill the subcommittee "Chair" vacancy. 

• Action: 
Review and Approve 
November 1, 2023, 
Executive Meeting Minutes 

• The minutes were reviewed; no corrections were noted. 

• A motion to approve November 1, 2023, Executive Meeting Minutes was 
made by Karen Medrano and seconded by Tuliisa Miller. The motion 
passed. 

• Review and Decide on Parent 
Recognition of Staff 

• The group reviewed all nomination forms and selected Ms. Sandra 
Sanchez, Associate Teacher at GMC; Ms. Bangone Somboonsab, Infant 
Toddler Teacher at GMC; Ms. Saephan Thoot, Master Teacher at Crescent 
Park, to receive recognition at the March 20, 2024, Policy Council Meeting 
for their outstanding work with the children and families.  

• The nominated staff will be invited to receive recognition at the February 
21, 2024, Policy Council meeting. 
 



 Contra Costa County 
EHSD – Community Services Bureau 

Head Start Policy Council Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 
Location: 1470 Civic Court, Suite 200  

Policy Council Executive Committee Meeting Minutes -Approved date: Page 2 of 2 

TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 

• Review and set Agenda for 
February 21, 2024, Policy 
Council Meeting 

• The group reviewed and set the agenda for February 21, 2024, Policy 
Council Meeting.  

• Wellness Activity: “Black history month” 

• Meeting Evaluation 
Pluses / + 

• Great meeting facilitation by Juan Batiz 
• Good team feedback 

Deltas / Δ 

• Nothing to report 

 



 

PC Minutes 2/21/2024      Page 1 of 17 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 

Policy Council Meeting Minutes 
Location: 500 Ellinwood Way, Pleasant Hill, CA 

 

Date: 2/21/2024 Time Convened:  6:07 PM Time Terminated: 8:10   PM Recorder: Zully Acosta 
  

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
Review Desired 
Outcomes  
and Meeting Rules 

Juan Batiz, Policy Council Vice Chair, called the meeting to order at 6:07 PM. 
Tuliisa Miller, Parliamentarian, reviewed the desired outcomes and meeting ground rules. 

Wellness Activity Policy Council Representatives participated in a wellness activity: “Celebrating Black History Month” 
Correspondence No correspondence. 
Public Comment None 
Parent Recognition 
of Staff 

The following staff were recognized for going above and beyond in their work with the children and the families:  
• Ms. Bangone Somboonsab, Infant/ Toddler Teacher at GMC; Ms. Sandra Sanchez, Associate Teacher at GMC; and Ms. Saephan 

Thoot, Master Teacher at Crescent Park, were presented with a certificate to acknowledge their dedication to children and 
families. 

Action:  Review and 
Consider Approval 
of Ratification and 
Nomination of 
Executive Members 
  

Ana Araujo, Comprehensive Services Manager, reviewed the PC Bylaws extraction for the Ratification and Nomination of Executive 
Members. 
 

 



 

PC Minutes 2/21/2024      Page 2 of 17 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
 
 
A motion to approve Ratification and Nomination of Executive Members was made by Deanna Carmona and seconded by Ericka Garcia. 
The motion passed with 14 votes in favor.  
 

Ayes Nays Abstentions   Not Present  

Amy Mockoski Raisha Bailleres Michelly Mendanha   Ana Maria Grijalva Perez Karen Medrano Olga Rios 

Juan Batiz Deanna Carmona Ericka Garcia   Lesly Perez Alvarez Bennji Zanabria Gabriela Garibay 

Raquel Magana Teresita Palomera Charmain Steptoe   Rhiana Obemeier Kassandra Tiahuitzo Joselyn Chininnin 
Sanchez 

Vanessa Ornelas Jason Streefery Tuliisa Miller   Alondra Martinez Tiffany Marbray Yasmin Rodriguez 

Janelle Lafrades Maria Garcia    Yesica Hernandez   

        

        

 

Action:  Review and 
Consider Approval 
of a Community 
Representative 

 
Ana Araujo, Comprehensive Service Manager, provided Community Representatives wishing to serve on the 2023-2024 Policy Council 
the opportunity to read their Letters of Interest. 

• Community Representative Letter of Interest was received from: Karen Coleman from Economic Opportunity Council. 
 

A motion to approve 2023-2024 Community Representatives was made by Maria Garcia and seconded by Janelle LaFrades. The 
motion passed with 14 votes in favor.  

Ayes Nays Abstentions   Not Present  

Amy Mockoski Rasisha Bailleres Michelly Mendanha   Ana Maria Grijalva Perez Karen Medrano Olga Rios 

Juan Batiz Deanna Carmona Jaxsiny Rocha   Lesly Perez Alvarez Bennji Zanabria Gabriela Garibay 

Raquel Magana Teresita Palomera Charmain Steptoe   Rhiana Obemeier Kassandra Tiahuitzo Joselyn Chininnin 
Sanchez 

Vanessa Ornelas Jason Streefery Tuliisa Miller   Alondra Martinez Tiffany Marbray Yasmin Rodriguez 

Janelle Lafrades Maria Garcia    Yesica Hernandez   

        

        

 
 
 



 

PC Minutes 2/21/2024      Page 3 of 17 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
 

Action: Consider 
approval of the 
2024-2025 CSB 
Admissions 
Priorities/Selection 
criteria and 
Recruitment & 
Enrollment Plan 
 

Kelly Chun, Comprehensive Service Manager and Tracy Lewis, Administrative Services Assistant II, Provided an overview of the 2024-
2025 CSB Admissions Priorities/Selection Criteria and Recruitment & Enrollment Plan. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

PC Minutes 2/21/2024      Page 4 of 17 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
 
 

 
 



 

PC Minutes 2/21/2024      Page 5 of 17 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 

 
 
A motion to approve the 2024-2025 CSB Admissions Priorities/Selection criteria and Recruitment & Enrollment Plan was made by Ericka 
Garcia and seconded by Amy Mockoski. The motion passed with 16 votes in favor. 

Ayes Nays Abstentions   Not Present  

Amy Mockoski Raisha Bailleres Michelly Mendanha   Yesica Hernandez Karen Medrano Olga Rios 

Juan Batiz Deanna Carmona Ericka Garcia   Lesly Perez Alvarez Bennji Zanabria Gabriela Garibay 



 

PC Minutes 2/21/2024      Page 6 of 17 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
Raquel Magana Teresita Palomera Charmain Steptoe   Rhiana Obemeier Kassandra Tiahuitzo Joselyn Chininnin 

Sanchez 
Vanessa Ornelas Jason Streefery Tuliisa Miller   Alondra Martinez Tiffany Marbray Yasmin Rodriguez 

Janelle Lafrades Maria Garcia Ana Maria Grijalva 
Perez 

     

Karen Coleman        
 

Action: Consider 
approval of 
November 15, 
2023, Policy Council 
Minutes 

The Policy Council meeting minutes from November 15, 2023, were reviewed, and no corrections were noted.  
  
A motion to approve the November 15, 2023, Policy Council meeting minutes was made by Deanna Carmona and seconded by Raquel 
Magana. The motion passed with 15 votes in favor.  

Ayes Nays Abstentions   Not Present  

Amy Mockoski Raisha Bailleres Michelly Mendanha  Jason Streefery Yesica Hernandez Karen Medrano Olga Rios 

Juan Batiz Deanna Carmona Jaxsiny Rocha   Lesly Perez Alvarez Bennji Zanabria Gabriela Garibay 

Raquel Magana Teresita Palomera Charmain Steptoe   Rhiana Obemeier Kassandra Tiahuitzo Joselyn Chininnin 
Sanchez 

Vanessa Ornelas Karen Coleman Tuliisa Miller   Alondra Martinez Tiffany Marbray Yasmin Rodriguez 

Janelle Lafrades Maria Garcia Ana Maria Grijalva 
Perez 

     

 
 

Administrative 
Reports 
• Interim Director 
• Division 

Manager 
• Fiscal 

M.J. Robb, Community Services Bureau Interim Director, presented the Director’s report: 
 

• At your March PC Meeting, we will be bringing you our Competitive Grant Application. It is very important that you all attend. 
This is what governance is all about! 

• February is Dental Health Month! The program has many things planned for you and as a reminder: Brush with every meal and 
visit your dentist regularly! Baby teeth are important and need to be cared for just as much as adult teeth! And for our babies 
with no teeth – keep those gums healthy and clean! 

• Our Economic Opportunity Council has two openings for low-income individuals in Contra Costa County. Make your voice heard 
and join this dynamic committee that has one goal: fighting poverty! You can make a difference! Contact Christina Reich at 925-
608-8819 if you are interested or have any questions. 

• February 5-9 was Pride in Food Service Week, and the program celebrated our fabulous Child Nutrition Team by showering 
them with artwork, home-baked goods, gift bags and lots of words of affirmation.  

• We have been recruiting teachers all over the county! We held a job fair at the Brentwood Library and held 7 onsite interviews! 
We also began a series of Open Houses at our centers to support family members in learning about our job opportunities. Stay 
tuned! 



 

PC Minutes 2/21/2024      Page 7 of 17 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
Christina Reich, Division Manager, reported:   
 

Enrollment: 
• The January 2024 enrollment was 61.27% for Head Start and 67.42% for Early Head Start and Early Head Start Childcare 

Partnership #2.   
• The January attendance was 76.60% for Head Start and Head Start Delegate and 77.65% for Early Head Start and Early Head 

Start Childcare Partnership #2. 
Monitoring: 

• The Monitoring compliance rates for January 2024 were 98.45% for the Weekly Facility Checklist, 99.9% for the Daily Health 
and Safety Classroom Checklist, 99.9 % for the Daily Teacher Playground Safety Checklist, and 99.36% for the Monthly 
Playground Safety Checklist. 

       
Presented Mini PIR: 

  February 2024- Head Start     
 A.12 Cumulative Enrollment 809   

C.7 Number of all children who are up to date (through the end of the program year) on a schedule of age-
appropriate preventive and primary health care, according to the relevant state's EPSDT schedule for well 
child care. 138 17.06% 
C.8a The number who have received or are receiving medical treatment. 104 12.86% 

C.19 Number of all children, including those enrolled in Medicaid or CHIP, who have completed a 
professional dental examination during the program year. 414 51.17% 
C19.a.1 Of these, the number of children who have received or are receiving dental treatment. 82 10.14% 
C.1.a Number enrolled in Medicaid and /or CHIP 561 69.34% 
C1 Number of all children with health insurance 659 81.46% 

C.24 Number of children enrolled in the program who had an Individualized Education Program (IEP), at any 
time during the enrollment year, indicating they were determined eligible by the LEA to receive special 
education and related services 142 17.55% 

C.28 Number of all newly enrolled children who completed required screenings within 45 days for 
developmental, sensory and behavioral concerns since last year's PIR was reported. 224 27.69% 
C.45 Number of families that received at least one program services to promote family outcomes. 520   
      

Feriar 2024- Early Head Start     
 A.10g Cumulative Enrollment of Children 517   



 

PC Minutes 2/21/2024      Page 8 of 17 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 

C.7 Number of all children who are up-to-date on a schedule of age-appropriate preventive and primary 
health care, according to the relevant state's EPSDT schedule for well child care. 31 6.00% 
C.8a The number who have received or are receiving medical treatment. 37 7.16% 
C.1.a Number enrolled in Medicaid and /or CHIP 406 78.53% 
C1 Number of all children with health insurance 441 85.30% 

C.25 Number of children enrolled in the program who had an Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP), at any 
time during the enrollment year, indicating they were determined eligible by the Part C Agency to receive 
early intervention services the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) 10 1.93% 

C.28 Number of all newly enrolled children who completed required screenings within 45 days for 
developmental, sensory and behavioral concerns since last year's PIR was reported. 107 20.70% 
C.45 Number of families that received at least one program services to promote family outcomes. 189   

 
Ali Vahidizadeh, Administrative Services ASST II, presented the following financial reports:  
 

• 203-2024 Head Start Program:  December 2023, year-to-date cash expenditures were $12, 008,435 YTD, representing 50% of 
the program budget. 

• 2023-2024 Early Head Start Program: December 2023, year-to-date cash expenditures were $5,029,676 YTD, representing 
32% of the program budget. 

• Credit Card expenditures for all programs, including Head Start and Early Head Start, for December 2023 were $16,000.92. 
• Child and Adult Care Food Program:  December 2023, total meals served, including breakfast, lunch, and supplements, were 

10,808. With a claim reimbursement of $33,889.00 
 

Report: 
1st DRDP Outcomes 
and School 
Readiness Goals for 
2023-2024 

LaTonya Saucer, Education Manager and Afi Fiaxe, Education Manager, provided an overview of the Child Outcomes & School 
Readiness Goal Report 2023-2024.  
The Community Services Bureau implements the State of California developed desired results developmental profile (DRDP-2015) 
assessment to identify the developmental needs and program-wide outcomes of all infants, toddlers and preschool children. The tool 
assesses children based in different developmental domains, measures, and levels. Three assessments are conducted each program 
year using this instrument to monitor children's development. Results of the First Assessment, also called the Baseline: 
 
The DRDP-2015 Assessment Domains 

• Teaching staff assess the development of all children three times each year in these developmental domains:  
o Approaches to learning (atl) includes seven measures. 
o Social and emotional development (sed) includes five measures. 
o Language and literacy development (lld) contains ten measures. 



 

PC Minutes 2/21/2024      Page 9 of 17 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
o English language development (eld preschool only) includes four measures. 
o Cognition including math and science. (Cog) includes seven measures. 
o Physical development and health (pdhlth) includes ten measures. 

SCHOOL READINESS GOAL INFANT AND TODDLERS 
• Atl2-self comforting 
• Sed5-symbolic & sociodramatic play. 
• Lld2-responsiveness to language. 
• Children develop the capacity to use objects to represent other objects or ideas and to engage in symbolic play with others. 
• Children develop the capacity to comfort or soothe self in response to distress from internal or external stimulation. 
• Children communicate or act in response to language and respond to increasingly complex language. 
• Cog3-number sense of quantity. 
• Pdhlth8-dressing (personal care routine). 
• Children show developing understanding of number and quantity. 
• Children develop and refine the ability to participate in and take responsibility for dressing self. 

 
EXPECTED YEAR-END OUTCOMES 
Infants: 

• By June 2024, there will be a 15% increase from the first to the third assessment for infants regarding their ability to 
demonstrate knowledge and skills at the responding later level or above on selected measures.  

Overall domains: 
• By June 2024, 65% of infant children will achieve the responding later level and above in all domains. 

Toddlers: 
• By June 2024, there will be a 20% increase from the first to third assessment for toddlers regarding their ability to demonstrate 

knowledge and skills at the exploring earlier level or above on selected measures.  
Overall domains: 

• By June 2024, 70% of toddler children will achieve the exploring earlier level and above in all domains. 
 
INFANT AND TODDLER ASSESSMENT KEY FINDINGS 

• Infant and toddler children’s highest baseline scores were in the social and emotional development domain. 45% of children 
scored at the exploring earlier level or above in this domain. 

• Infant and toddler children’s lowest baseline scores were in the language and literacy development domain. 33% of children 
scored at the exploring earlier level or above in this domain. 

SCHOOL READINESS GOALS 
BASELINE RESULTS - INFANTS & TODDLERS 
ATL-2 SELF-COMFORTING 

• Responding Later: 17% 



 

PC Minutes 2/21/2024      Page 10 of 17 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
• Exploring Earlier: 45% 

SED-5 SYMBOLIC & SOCIODRAMATIC PLAY 
• Responding Later: 28% 
• Exploring Earlier: 32% 

LLD-2 RESPONSIVENESS TO LANGUAGE 
• Responding Later: 27% 

Exploring Earlier: 37% 
COG-3 NUMBER SENSE OF QUANTITY 

• Responding Later: 28% 
• Exploring Earlier: 40% 

PD-HLTH-8 DRESSING 
• Responding Later: 22% 

Exploring Earlier:33% 
 
PRESCHOOL & PRE-KINDERGARTEN SCHOOL READINESS GOALS 

• Atl1-attention maintenance 
• Sed2-social and emotional understanding 
• Lld5-interest in literacy 
• Children develop the capacity to pay attention to people, things, or the environment when interacting with others or exploring 

play materials 
• Children show developing understanding of people’s behaviors, feelings, thoughts, and individual characteristics 
• Children show interest in books, songs, rhymes, stories, and other literacy activities in increasingly complex ways 
• Eld4 - symbol, letter and word knowledge 
• Cog1-spatial relationships 
• Pdhlth6-hygiene (personal care routine) 
• Children show an increasing understanding that print in English carries meaning 
• Children increasingly show understanding of how objects move in space or fit in different spaces 
• Children increasingly responds to and initiates personal care routines that support hygiene 

 
EXPECTED YEAR END CHILDREN’S PROGRESS 
Preschool: 

• Overall domain -75% of preschool children will achieve the building earlier level and above in all domains. 
Overall domains: 

• By June 2024, there will be an increase of 25% in development from the first to the third assessment for preschool children at 
the building earlier level or above on selected measures. 

Pre-kindergarten: 
• Overall domain - 80% of pre-kindergarten children will achieve at the building later level and above in all domains. 



 

PC Minutes 2/21/2024      Page 11 of 17 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
Overall domains: 

• By June 2024, there will be an increase of 30% in development from the first to the third assessment for pre-kindergarten 
children at the building later level or above on selected measures. 

 
PRESCHOOL/PRE-KINDERGARTEN ASSESSMENT KEY FINDINGS 

• Preschool & pre-kindergarten age children’s highest baseline scores were in the physical development and health domain. 72% 
of children scored at the building earlier and above levels in this domain. 

• Preschool & pre-kindergarten age children’s lowest scores are in the approaches to learning domain. 54% of children scored at 
the building earlier and above levels. 

SCHOOL READINESS GOALS 
BASELINE RESULTS-PRESCHOOL & PRE-K 
ATL-1 ATTENTION MAINTENANCE 

• Building Earlier: 37% 
• Building Middle & Later: 0% 

SED-2 SOCIAL & EMOTIONAL UNDERSTADING 
• Building Earlier: 31% 
• Building Middle & Later: 31% 

LLD-5 INTEREST IN LITERACY 
• Building Earlier: 31% 
• Building Middle & Later: 21% 

ELD-4 SYMBOL, LETTER, & PRINT KNOWLEDGE 
• Developing & Building English: 39% 

COG 1 SPATIAL RELATIONSHIPS 
• Building Earlier: 43% 
• Building Middle & Later: 0% 

PD-HLTH-6 HYGEINE 
• Building Earlier: 21% 
• Building Middle & Later: 42% 

 
RELATED PARENT FAMILY AND COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT GOAL 
INFANTS & TODDLERS 
Symbolic & sociodramatic play sed 5 
 
Families as lifelong educators, 
 Will receive take home activities that promote children’s development in the capacity to use objects to represent other objects 

or ideas and to engage in symbolic play with others 



 

PC Minutes 2/21/2024      Page 12 of 17 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
 Will increase their ability to support their child to develop the capacity to use objects to represent other objects or ideas and to 

engage in symbolic play with others 
 
RELATED PARENT FAMILY AND COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT GOAL - PRESCHOOL & PRE-KINDERGARTEN 
Social and emotional understanding sed 2  
Families as lifelong educators, 

• Will receive child development literature and take home activities that promote children’s knowledge in understanding of 
people’s behaviors, feelings, thoughts, and individual characteristics 

• Would have increased ability to support their children’s developing in understanding of people’s behaviors, feelings, thoughts, 
and individual characteristics  

 
 

Report: 
2023-2024 Program 
Goals Mid- Year 
Updates 

Sarah Reich, Division Manager TU, provided the 2023-2024 Program Goals Mid-Year Updates. 
 
Head Start Program Goals 

• Head Start Program Performance Standard 1302.102(a) 
o Establish goals and measurable objectives. 

• Track and report on progress. 
• Culture of continuous improvement 

 
Goal 1 

• Ensure a culture that includes standardized practices for safe environments, safe transitions, Children’s Personal Rights, 
standards of conduct, child supervision, and classroom monitoring. 

o The full implementation of the QIP was completed on July 14, 2023. CSB continues to follow it's robust, multi-layered 
Ongoing Monitoring Plan. Monitoring data is shared monthly with Policy Council and the Board of Supervisors. 

Goal 2 
• Adapt to the shift in community need for infant and toddler services and in light of the California implementation of 

Transitional Kindergarten. 
o Phase 2 conversion, with EHS slot increase effective July 1, 2023, is in-progress as CSB is converting a classroom at Los 

Nogales and Lavonia Allen from preschool to toddler services. 
o Minor renovation supported by previously approved carryover funding are in-progress to make physical space 

appropriate for toddlers. 
Goal 3 

• Implement innovative approaches to hiring, developing, and retaining a robust teaching, support and management staff for 
grantee operated and delegate/partner operated sites. 

o Board of Supervisors approved education staff hiring and retention stipends. 



 

PC Minutes 2/21/2024      Page 13 of 17 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
o Piloted on-site hiring event in October 2023, held 2nd hiring event January 2024 

Goal 4 
• Continue to execute, and then monitor the effectiveness of, the integration of administrative functions into the Employment & 

Human Services Department which was started with fiscal functions as part of the 2022 Quality Improvement Plan. 
o Business systems integration with EHSD IT January 2024 

Goal 5 
• Increase enrollment and attendance levels for grantee operated and delegate/partner operated centers as we continue to 

emerge from the impacts of the pandemic. 
o Collaboration with Workforce Services, over 12,000 recruitment flyers sent to CalWorks and CalFresh families with 

children under 5 years old. 
 
 

Presentation: Oral 
Health 

Catherine Lucero, Health Content Area Manager, presented on the importance of Oral Health.   
• Give Kids a Smile Day is planned for March 1st.  Local dentists will visit the centers to provide visual checks for children’s teeth. 

Local Hygienist students will also visit to provide fluoride treatments to the children and oral health education.  
• All classrooms have been providing lessons focus on oral health.  
• Community trends 

o 45% of children experience cavities, 1 in 5 children have untreated cavities which can lead to children missing school 
due to discomfort and pain.  Healthy teeth help kids perform better in school.  

o Juice can have as much sugar as soda.  It is recommended to avoid giving children under 1 year old juice. Toddlers may 
have 4oz a day, preschoolers, 4-6 oz, and older children should limit to 8 oz of juice per day.  

o Water is best!  Bottled water does not have fluoride, which nourishes your teeth.  Tap water, even filtered tap water, is 
better for your teeth. 

 
Subcommittees 
Updates 

Juan De Dios Batiz, PC Vice-Chair, shared: 
• He participated on the Fiscal Subcommittee and heard the budget updates. 

 
Deanna Carmona, Community Representative, shared: 

• She participated in the Monitoring Subcommittee and welcomed Janet Rivera to the monitoring team.  The full semi-annual 
report will come to Policy Council next month.  

 
Site Reports Bayo Vista: 

• Celebrating Successes - Mr. Jose is training and onboarding a new Teacher Assistant Trainee, Mr. Miguel. The children are 
enjoying getting to know him.    



 

PC Minutes 2/21/2024      Page 14 of 17 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
• What’s New at the Site - The center received some wellness items for the teaching staff.  Each teaching staff member got a new 

jacket, hoodie, scarf, and gloves. They have been using these to stay warm while playing with the kids outside.  Darling Rivera, 
Comprehensive Services Assistant Manager, welcomed Adilene Rodriguez, who will support the center on Mondays and 
Tuesdays, as the new Comprehensive Services Clerk. 

• Special Projects - Room 1 children are showing interest in colors, shapes, and numbers.  The children have also been enjoying 
using stuffed animals to pretend to take care of them.  Room 2 children have continued to show a heightened interest in the 
building.  Dinosaurs are a new addition to their block area, and children have been enjoying building taller structures with 
dinosaurs and animals at the top of the towers. Room 3 children have continued to show interest in sensory play.  The 
classroom explores different things that sink and float, color mixing, and ice play. 

• Special Guests - Cal State East Bay CSUEB Nursing students Tatchpong and Ciara just started their internship in the preschool 
classroom in room 3.  During their last visit, they focused on teaching the children the importance of drinking water and staying 
hydrated. 

GMC: 
• Celebrating Successes – We are celebrating with Ms. Megan as she completes her 12 CD units. She is now on her way to get her 

Associate Teacher permit. Ms. Gabi and Ms. Rosie got their required Infant/ Toddler units and will officially be I/T Associate 
teachers. We are also happy to open Infant/Toddler Room 7B. We are currently working to enroll three more young toddlers to 
fill in the spots in that room. 

• What’s New at the Site – GMC is pleased to have Sharareh Ahmadicharoymagh as our comprehensive services clerk. She 
worked for CSB at Balboa for a year and now works full-time at George Miller. 

• Special Projects – We are still waiting for the new GMC street sign to be completed. 
• Special Guests – Mr. Ron Pipa, a volunteer, continues to visit the classrooms to play his accordion. Children love to sing and 

dance to his music. The ladies from the Assistance League of Diablo Valley come every Thursday to read for the preschool 
classrooms. On top of that, we had the librarian visit GMC every month to do circle time. On Jan. 2, she came with the mobile 
library and gave each child a book to take home courtesy of Contra Costa Library. 

• Sharing Resources – For this month's family meeting, we have shared the "Healthy Eating" and "Tips for Cold/ Flu season" 
resources on Jan. 30, 2024. 

Lavonia Allen: 
• Celebrating Successes – Ms. Dunya was recognized as an excellent and caring teacher by the Policy Council. Classroom 2 is fully 

enrolled. Our Study Project this month is "Birds." 
• What’s New at the Site – New furniture for our Lobby area has arrived, and we are waiting for it to be assembled. 
• Special Projects – We are learning about birds and nests. 
• Special Guests – Librarian Bella Merrill came to read and sing to the children on Thursday, January 18.  Volunteers, Therese 

Welter and Nancy Myers, from The Assistance League of Diablo Valley came to read to our children on January 10 & 24. 
• Sharing Resources – Friday Flyers, Cal Fresh resources, The Backpack Connection Series resources for two of our families, and 

Dental health resources. 
Los Arboles: 



 

PC Minutes 2/21/2024      Page 15 of 17 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
• Celebrating Successes – Los Arboles Center is very excited to announce that the center has achieved and passed the National 

Association for The Education of Young Children NAEYC; the center has been awarded a 5-year certificate of quality care. This 
considerable achievement took so many months of hard work from the teaching staff and the administration. Congratulations 
Los Arboles!  

• What’s New at the Site – The preschool classroom has new shelves for the block area. 
• Special Projects – Nursing students have started to visit the classroom and educate children on healthy habits, and they come 

every Wednesday during ample group time. Houses that children built and worked on for the building project go home as the 
children are ready to close the project and move on to another project. The closing event occurred at the end of January when 
the children played the role of real estate agents and sold their houses to their parents. 

• Special Guests – Sara Lopez, Region 9 Grantee Specialist with Head Start, visited on Thursday, January 11th. 
• Sharing Resources – Friday, resources were emailed to parents. 

Los Nogales: 
• Celebrating Successes – The teachers in classroom #1 invited the parents of the children to participate in a Tree Project one 

morning, which involved painting a tree with their kids! Thank you for your time, parents!   
• What’s New at the Site – We received our newly ordered toys from Lakeshore for the upcoming Toddler classroom #2! 
• Facility Improvements – Our two Los Nogales classroom buildings received new surveillance cameras for better safety. 
• Special Projects – Classroom #1-Study of Trees 
• Special Guests – We were delighted to have two new California State University East Bay CSUEB nursing students come and 

teach the children about the importance of yoga, exercise, and proper handwashing practices! These nursing students will be 
visiting the classroom every Monday morning, and they will be introducing a new teaching topic related to health and safety! 
We also were delighted to have Bella, the librarian from our local community library who reads, sings, and plays the guitar and 
Ukulele for the children once a month during circle time. Bella gifted books to all the children this month! The Site Supervisor 
invited Judy Ventling, a licensed vocational nurse/instructor, to the parent meeting on Jan. 26th so families could receive basic 
first aid training. 

• Sharing Resources - All parents received letters from our CSB agency emphasizing the importance of regular school attendance 
and why it matters. All families received an info flyer entitled Attendance Works from the Site Supervisor and a printed TK & 
Kindergarten Readiness PowerPoint Presentation slide deck. Also, all families received first aid kits to use at home. 

Crescent Park: 
• Celebrating Successes – Crescent Park celebrated the beginning of a new year! Welcome, 2024!  
• Facility Improvements – Storm drains are unclogged and cleaned. 
• Special Projects – Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics STEM activities were the focus of the month. Children 

observed the making of ice. Classrooms watched a solid turning into a liquid and then back into a solid. 
• Sharing Resources - Parents received MPAP (Make Parenting A Pleasure) flyers and Kindergarten Transitions resources. 

GMIII: 
• Celebrating Successes – In January, GMIII continues to enroll new families.  
• What’s New at the Site – The staff have been appreciated and celebrated with wellness supplies. 



 

PC Minutes 2/21/2024      Page 16 of 17 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
• Special Projects – GMIII is having such fun during special projects. Room 6 project is on clothes, and they are building a washer 

and dryer out of boxes. Room 7 is studying trees. 
• Special Guests – GMIII has new nursing students that started this month from Cal State East Bay, presenting age-appropriate 

activities on health and nutrition at circle time. 
• Sharing Resources - Families continue to be supported each day by Comp Services with resources they need. CS attended 

January parent meeting and shared upcoming events and each parent received a book. 
Verde: 

• Celebrating Successes – Ms. Freda has retired as of 1/31/2024 we wish her well. Ms. Yolanda has returned 1/2/2024.  
• What’s New at the Site – Reclining chairs, meditation books, and music for the teachers/ children. 
• Facility Improvements - The staff room has new chairs to ensure a relaxing and rejuvenating environment. 
• Special Projects – Friendship Day 2/14/2024 
• Special Guests – Francisca Hernandez from Quality Matters; Bella Merril from the CC Library provided Music and Story Time; 

California State University, East Bay nursing Students will be visiting each Wednesday (health and wellness) 
• Sharing Resources - Teachers: The Multicultural Bookstore "What's Up Richmond" is shared with the families and other centers. 

Balboa: 
• Celebrating Successes – Staff and students with 100% attendance received a certificate of achievement from the Site 

Supervisor. 
• Special Projects – Pep Rally Day "Fun Friday" 2/9/24 - Children, staff, and parents show their team spirit. 
• Special Guests – Volunteer Ron Pipa plays accordion in all classrooms every Thursday. The children enjoy lots of dancing and 

singing. 
• Sharing Resources - During our January Parent Meeting with the topic: Kindergarten Readiness, parents were taken on a trip 

through the Season and given information on how to enroll their child in kindergarten, how to create healthy snacks and a list 
of books to read with their child that can be found at the local library during the Summer. 

Marsh Creek: 
• Celebrating Successes – Parent meeting: reviewed Kindergarten registration dates and needed documents; and CSB attendance 

policy. 
• Special Projects – Both classrooms are just working on the traffic signs study. 
• Special Guests – Both classrooms are just working on the traffic signs study. 
• Sharing Resources - Both classrooms are just working on the traffic signs study. 

Riverview: 
• Celebrating Successes – We are one away from complete enrollment. 
• Special Projects – The floor in room 1 was fixed. 
• Special Guests – We continue to enjoy Miss Bella's visits to us on the first Friday of every month.  
• Other Reports - We had an excellent meeting about transitioning from preschool to TK/Kindergarten. 

Ambrose: 
• Celebrating Successes – Room A is fully enrolled. 



 

PC Minutes 2/21/2024      Page 17 of 17 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 

 

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
• Special Projects – Helping children with social and emotional - expressing feelings and understanding feelings. 
• Special Guests – Bella Merril, Librarian, came to read books and played musical instruments in the classroom. 
• Sharing Resources - Bella Merril shared books for the family to take at home. 

Announcements Ana Araujo, Comprehensive Service Manager, provided the following announcements. 
• We had no Parking-lot items to follow up from January.  
• 700 Annual Conflict of interest Forms will be collected in March as they are due April 2, 2024 
• PC participation is crucial for our program, please reserve the date for Upcoming. 

• Next Meetings: 

o Policy Council Executive Meeting: No meeting for month of March 2024 
o Policy Council Business Meeting: March 6, 2024. 

 
 Pluses / + 

• None 
Deltas / Δ 

• None 



 

PC Minutes 3/6/2024      Page 1 of 14 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 

Policy Council Meeting Minutes 
Location: 500 Ellinwood Way, Pleasant Hill, CA 

 

Date: 3/6/2024 Time Convened:  6:10 PM Time Terminated: 8:25   PM Recorder: Zully Acosta 
  

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
Review Desired 
Outcomes  
and Meeting Rules 

Juan Batiz, Policy Council Chair, called the meeting to order at 6:10 PM.  
Tuliisa Miller, Policy Council Vice Chair, reviewed the desired outcomes and meeting ground rules. 

Wellness Activity Policy Council Representatives participated in a wellness activity by sharing Juan Batiz. Enjoying a meal together. 
Correspondence No correspondence. 
Public Comment  
Administrative 
Reports 

MJ Robb, Interim Director, presented the Director’s report: 
 

• Thanked the Council for coming to an off-scheduled meeting.  
• Introduced Amy Wells, Division Manager, and Sarah Reich, Division Manager, to assist with presentation on the Grant 

application.  
 

Action: Grant 
Approval 
  

MJ Robb, Interim Director, Amy Wells, Division Manager, and Sarah Reich, Division Manager, provided 2024-2028 Grant Application 
Update. 
Outline 

• 2024-2028 Grant Application Project Summary 
• Achieving Early Learning and Development Outcomes  
• Past Performance 
• Staffing & Supporting a Strong Workforce 
• Planning and Implementation 
• Organizational Capacity and Governance 
• Budget  

2024-2028 Grant Application Project Summary – Submitted Status 
• Draft 1 of Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) Response Completed: 2/14/24 
• Contra Costa Board of Supervisor (BOS) Head Start Committee: 3/4/24 
• Policy Council Approval: 3/6/24 
• BOS Head Start Committee: 3/18/24 
• Contra Costa Board of Supervisor Approval: 3/19/24 



 

PC Minutes 3/6/2024      Page 2 of 14 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
• Electronic Application Submission: 3/22/24 
• Application Deadline: 3/26/24 

 
Achieving Early Learning and Development Outcomes  

• Curriculum & Enhancements 
• School Readiness-Goals & Objectives 
• Ongoing Monitoring System 
• Community & Formalized Partnerships 

Curriculum and Enhancements 
• Creative Curriculum 

o Infants, Toddlers, and Two's 
o Preschool 

• Second Step Early Learning 
• Teaching Pyramid Framework 
• Program for Infant Toddler Care (PITC) 
• Classroom Assessment Scoring System (CLASS) Strategies 

School Readiness - Goals & Objectives 
• Utilize Desired Results Developmental Profile (DRDP) 2015 assessment tool 
• Complete and analyze DRDP assessment data three times per year 
• Use assessment results to inform program planning and decision-making at individual, group, and program levels 
• Parent, Family, Community, Engagement component 

Ongoing Monitoring System 
• Ongoing Monitoring system ensures programs are meeting compliance regulations while also achieving program goals and 

objectives. 
• Ongoing monitoring is comprehensive and occurs on a frequent basis, assessing systems and program operations for 

compliance and quality of our program outcomes.  It includes the review and evaluation of all services and systems, 
documentation of results, tracking and analyzing areas of concern and correction, and validation of correction. 

• Multi-level monitoring is implemented to ensure all staff are involved in the review and evaluation of every service and system 
under CSB. 

o Site/Center Level Monitoring 
o Content and Service Area Monitoring   
o Agency-level monitoring  

Community & Formalized Partnerships 
 
 

 



 

PC Minutes 3/6/2024      Page 3 of 14 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 

 
Past Performance 
Previous Recognition & Reviews 
Depth of Experience 
Administration for Children and Families (Office of Head Start) Monitoring Review 
Previous Recognition & Reviews 

• Innovative Practices 
o Merit Award from California State Association of Counties (CSAC)-February 2015 & December 2020 
o National Association for the Education of Young Children (NAEYC) Accreditation-Continuous 5 year reaccreditation at 4 

CSB locations 
• Successful Reviews 

o From 2019-2021, five regulatory audits, each with no findings 
 May 12, 2019 – Administration for Children & Families (ACF) Focus Area Two 
 May 31, 2019 – ACF Focus Area One 
 October 31, 2019 – ACF Onsite CLASS review 
 April 13, 2021 – California Department of Education (CDE) FY20/21 Governance and Administration Review, 

Contract Monitoring Review, Pilot Program Review 
 April 21, 2021 – California Department of Social Services Administrative Review 

Depth of Experience 



 

PC Minutes 3/6/2024      Page 4 of 14 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 

Name Role Years of Service 
HS/Education 
Experience 

Christina Reich Division Manager 30 30 

Rita Loza Comprehensive Services Manager 25 25 

Ana Araujo Family and Community Engagement Manager 21 21 

Afi Fiaxe Education Manager 17 30 

Kelly Chun Eligibility and Enrollment Manager 17 17 

Jacqueline Lopez Disabilities/Mental Health Manager 14 19 

Tracy Lewis Senior Manager of Recruitment/Enrollment 14 14 

Amy Wells Division Manager of Center Operations 14 25 

Jessie Black Assistant Director of Child Development 11 20 

Catherine Lucero Health Manager 11 42 

Sarah Reich Division Manager of Partnerships 10 13 

Michelle Mankewich Senior Manager of Comprehensive Services 8 20 

Irene Figueroa Nutrition Manager 7 14 
 
Administration for Children and Families (OHS) Monitoring Review 

• Deficiencies corrected February 9, 2023 
o 2 Safety Practices deficiencies 

• Corrected July 28, 2023 
o Deficiencies: Ongoing Monitoring and Continuous Improvement, Safety Practices, Ongoing Fiscal Capacity 
o Area of Noncompliance: Program Governance 

Staffing, Compensation, & Supporting a Strong Workforce 
Recruitment & Retention 
Wellness Initiatives 
 
Recruitment & Retention 

Staffing-Investing in the Workforce Strategies 

1.  Grow Our Own Approach 
• Teacher Assistant Trainee/Work Study Program 

2.    Enhanced Marketing Strategies for Recruitment 
• Building Legacy Early Childhood Educators Career Fairs 
• Virtual Open House Series 



 

PC Minutes 3/6/2024      Page 5 of 14 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 

• Paid advertisements and social media 

3.    Attempt to achieve parity with local school district pre-school salaries 
• Increase salaries for County employees 
• Increase rates for partners 

 
Wellness Initiatives 

• Enhanced Wellness Initiatives 
o Mindfulness Trainings 
o Simple, Impactful, Actionable (SIA) Team  
o Reflective Practices 
o Psychological First Aid 
o Trauma Informed and Responsive Agency 

Planning & Implementation 
Proposed Model 
Board Priorities 
Proposed Model 
 

 
 
Priorities 



 

PC Minutes 3/6/2024      Page 6 of 14 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 

 
Organizational Capacity & Governance 
Head Start Within County Structure 

 



 

PC Minutes 3/6/2024      Page 7 of 14 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
 
Budget 
FY 2025 Head Start Program Operation Summary 
 

 
The parents questioned why there is a $10 million dollar difference from this year versus next year. Sarah Reich explained that this is a 
carryover from prior years. The base funding of our grant is $29,661.911, which has not changed. Sarah Reich shared that we do get 
funding increases from time to time, such as the cost-of-living adjustments. A discussion ensued about the teacher wages and stipends. 
Amy Wells explained that going forward, salary increases are included in this budget. Sarah Reich also shared that this budget only 
contains the federal funds part of teacher salaries and that the state also pays part of the salaries for our full day programs. Parents 
asked about the “other” category and Sarah Reich shared that things like security guards go there and items other items that don’t fit in 
the rest of the categories. 
 
Motion Request 
To approve this grant application and recommend to the Board of Supervisors for approval. 
 
A motion to approve the Grant Approval was made by Raquel and seconded by Janelle. The motion passed with 20 votes in favor.  

Ayes Nays Abstentions   Not Present  

Maria Sanchez Rasisha Bailleres Michelly Mendanha   Ana Maria Grijalva Perez Ingrid Loren Dos Anjs Maria Garcia 



 

PC Minutes 3/6/2024      Page 8 of 14 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
Karen Coleman Deanna Carmona Amy Mockoski   Lesly Perez Alvarez Bennji Zanabria Charmain Steptoe 

Raquel Magana Teresita Palomera Juan Batiz   Rhiana Obemeier Kassandra Tiahuitzo Joselyn Chininnin 
Sanchez 

Jaxsiny Reyes Rocha Olga Rios Yesica Hernandez   Alondra Martinez Tiffany Marbray  

Vanessa Ornelas Jennifer Martinez Gabriela Gomar 
Garibay 

     

Karen Medrano Tuliisa Miller Kimberly Nieve      

Janelle Lafrades        
 

Report:  
1st Period Semi 
Annual Monitoring 
Report  

Sarah Reich, Division Manager, presented the 2023-2024 Semi-Annual Monitoring Report. 
 
Head Start Management Wheel 
A visual representation of the twelve (12) program management, planning, and oversight systems that are critical to high-quality 
services.  
All these components (teams) work together to ensure Quality Child & Family Outcomes 
 

 
Head Start Program Performance Standards 



 

PC Minutes 3/6/2024      Page 9 of 14 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
1302.102 Achieving program goals. (b) Monitoring program performance. (1) Ongoing compliance oversight and correction. In order to 
ensure effective ongoing oversight and correction, a program must establish and implement a system of ongoing oversight that ensures 
effective implementation of the program performance standards, including ensuring child safety, and other applicable federal 
regulations as described in this part, and must: (i) Collect and use data to inform this process; (ii) Correct quality and compliance issues 
immediately, or as quickly as possible; (iii) Work with the governing body and the policy council to address issues during the ongoing 
oversight and correction process and during federal oversight; and, (iv) Implement procedures that prevent recurrence of previous 
quality and compliance issues, including previously identified deficiencies, safety incidents, and audit findings 
The Monitoring Report Includes: 
 

 
Monitoring Compliance Rates 

 



 

PC Minutes 3/6/2024      Page 10 of 14 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
Strengths 

• Positive interactions between teachers and children continues to trend highly across tools 
• Professional development initiatives focused on health, safety, and administrative changes are visible in the overall monitoring 

data. 
• Preventable non-compliances continued to decrease from the previous monitoring period. 
• Most trended items are corrected and documented in CLOUDS timely (before the next corrective action reports are out) 
• Rust is NOT the main event anymore!  

 
Areas for Improvement 

• Increasing compliance for specific indicators in content area checklists 
                             -       Safe environments 

                                    -      Lesson Plans (Social Emotional components, health & safety component, individualized codes)  
• Timeline/Collaboration for corrections of larger facility projects 

- Items dependent on Public Works/School Districts 
• Conducting Monitoring throughout the monitoring period 

 
WHAT’S NEXT? 
 

 
 
 

Presentation: Amy Mockoski, Librarian III- Youth Services, Presented the Contra Costa Library Presentation 



 

PC Minutes 3/6/2024      Page 11 of 14 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
Contra Costa 
Library 
 

 
 

 
 



 

PC Minutes 3/6/2024      Page 12 of 14 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 

   
 

 
 

 
 



 

PC Minutes 3/6/2024      Page 13 of 14 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 



 

PC Minutes 3/6/2024      Page 14 of 14 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 

 

  

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
 

 
 
 

Announcements Michelle Mankewich, Administrative Asst. III, provided the following announcements: 
• 700 Annual Conflict of interest Forms are due April 2, 2024  

• April Policy Council – in-person meeting 
o Policy Council Executive Meeting: April 3, 2024. 
o Policy Council Business Meeting: April 17, 2024. 

 
 Pluses / + 

• None 
Deltas / Δ 

• None 



 

PC Minutes 3/18/2024      Page 1 of 4 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 

Policy Council Meeting Minutes 
Location: 500 Ellinwood Way, Pleasant Hill, CA 

 

Date: 3/18/2024 Time Convened:  5:38 PM Time Terminated: 6:31   PM Recorder: Zully Acosta 
  

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
Review Desired 
Outcomes  
and Meeting Rules 

Juan Batiz, Policy Council Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:38 PM.  
Juan Batiz, Policy Council Chair, reviewed the desired outcomes. 
Tuliisa Miller, Policy Council Vice Chair, reviewed the meeting ground rules. 

Correspondence No correspondence. 
Public Comment No public comment 
Action: Montion 
Request  

Marla Stuart, Executive Director,  
 
Motion Request 
To accept new grant information that was not previously included in the packet. 
 
A motion to approve new grant information that was not previously included in the packet was made by Raquel Magana and seconded 
by Deanna Carmona. The motion passed with 17 votes in favor.  

Ayes Nays Abstentions   Not Present  

Deanna Carmona Amy Mockoski Kimberly Nieve   Ana Maria Grijalva Perez Ingrid Loren Dos Anjos Maria Garcia 

Michelly Mendanha Juan Batiz Rhiana Obemeier   Lesly Perez Alvarez Bennji Zanabria Charmain Steptoe 

Raquel                            
Magana 

Yesica                           
Hernandez 

Kassandra                                     
Tiahuitzo 

  Vanessa                                    
Ornelas 

Olga                                            
Rios 

Joselyn Chininnin 
Sanchez 

Jaxsiney Reyes Rocha Jennifer Martinez Gloria Sanchez   Alondra Martinez Tiffany Marbray Karen Coleman 

Beatriz Rios Gabriela Gomar Garibay    Raisha Bailleres Teresita Palomera Maria Sanchez 

Karen Medrano Tuliisa Miller       

Janelle Lafrades        

 
 

Action: Updates to 
Grant Application 
  

Marla Stuart, Executive Director, provided Grant Application Update. 
 



 

PC Minutes 3/18/2024      Page 2 of 4 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 

 
Questions: 

1. Is it an issue for the Grant that we don’t partner with YMCA? 
a. Not anticipating any problems. They already hold slots with ACF.  

2. Losing partnership with YMCA, how does this affect current families? 
a. No effect for current families, as Head Start will strive to ensure continuous care is provided. 

 
 



 

PC Minutes 3/18/2024      Page 3 of 4 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 

  
 
Questions: 

1. The proposed budget is different from the original budget, noting the equipment line is no longer included? Will there be no 
budget to purchase new equipment.  

a. Equipment items can fall under other budget areas.  Since we do not plan to add Comprehensive Service staff, there is 
not a need to detail that expense.  

2. Will there be more slots opening? And what does it look like? 
a.  We are proposing to open all the rooms in the centers and will be maximizing the use of our facilities.  

3. Can multiple agencies be awarded parts of grant? 
a. Yes, we’re aware of other agencies applying. We are supporting the YMCA in their application. 

4. Is the budget lower because the YMCA slots are not included? 
a. Yes, that is correct. 

5. Equipment budget gone; how will you pay for needs? 
a. The annual budget can be adjusted as needed; some funds built into other budget categories like supplies.  



 

PC Minutes 3/18/2024      Page 4 of 4 
                                                                                                                                                                              PC Approved:                                                                                       

 

 TOPIC RECOMMENDATION / SUMMARY 
6. Why did personnel cost go down and Benefits go out? 

a. Shifted funding between state budget and HS funding. 
7. Can we move how we are spending, from the supply category to another area? 

a. Head Start has rules, up to $250, 000 can be shifted without getting federal approval. If we shift more than $250, 000, 
we need to justify this reallocation and get approvals from Policy Council, Contra Costa County Board of Supervisor 
(BOS) and the Office of the Administration for Childrens & Families (ACF). 

8. If we don’t all agree on this request, does it go back to the old application, or do you have to go back and submit a new 
proposal? 

a. The County is obligated to continue to work with the Policy Council and the BOS until an agreement is met, that 
satisfies all parties. 

 
Motion Request 
To approve this grant application and recommend to the Board of Supervisors for approval. 
 
A motion to approve the Grant Approval was made by Maria Garcia and seconded by Michelly Mendanha. The motion passed with 16 
votes in favor.  

Ayes Nays Abstentions   Not Present  

Deanna Carmona Amy Mockoski Maria Garcia  Kimberly Nieve Ana Maria Grijalva Perez Ingrid Loren Dos Anjs Maria Sanchez 

Michelly Mendanha Juan Batiz Rhiana Obemeier  Janelle Lafrades Lesly Perez Alvarez Bennji Zanabria Charmain Steptoe 

Raquel Magana Yesica Hernandez Kassandra Tiahuitzo   Vanessa Ornelas Olga Rios Joselyn Chininnin 
Sanchez 

Jaxsiney Reyes Rocha Jennifer Martinez Gloria Sanchez   Alondra Martinez Tiffany Marbray Karen Coleman 

Beatriz Rios Gabriela Gomar Garibay    Raisha Bailleres Teresita Palomera  

Karen Medrano Tuliisa Miller       

        

 

Announcements Michelle Mankewich, Administrative Asst. III, provided the following announcements. 

• April Policy Council – in-person meeting 
o Policy Council Executive Meeting: April 3, 2024. 
o Policy Council Business Meeting: April 17, 2024. 

 
 Pluses / + 

• Option to attend meeting in closer centers was nice. 
• Meeting went well. 

Deltas / Δ 
• None 



 

  
 

Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by Community Services Bureau to a 
majority of members of the Head Start Policy Council less than 72 hours prior to that meeting are available for public inspection at: 3068 Grant St. 
Bldg. 8, Concord, CA 94520 during normal business hours. (Gov. Code, section 54957.5(b) (2)).  

 
 

Agenda 
  

Group/Meeting Name: CSB Policy Council Meeting 

Date: April 17, 2024 Time: 6:00 PM – 8:00 PM 

Meeting Location: 500 Ellinwood Way, Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 

Purpose: Conduct Regular Monthly Meeting 
 
The Community Services Bureau of Contra Costa County will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to 
participate in Policy Council meetings or subcommittee meetings. Please contact Ana Araujo at least 48 hours before the meeting at (925) 864-
0837 or at aaraujo@ehsd.cccounty.us or you may contact the Federal Information Relay Service at 1-800-877-8339 for Teletypewriter 
communication assistance. 

 

Desired Outcomes:  By the end of this meeting, we will have 
1. Agreement on desired outcomes and ground rules so that our meeting is productive. 

2. A wellness activity to open communication and enhance overall wellbeing. 

3. An awareness of CSB correspondence so that we are all informed of current notifications. 

4. An opportunity for the public to address the CSB Policy Council and share thoughts and ideas that 
may impact their work and the needs of the community. 

5. A Parent Recognition of Staff Excellence Award presentation to validate employee dedication and 
uniqueness while working with children and families. 

6. A review and approval of February 21, 2024, March 6, 2024, and March 18, 2024 Policy Council 
Minutes. 

7. Heard administrative Reports: An understanding of the monthly updates and approvals to ensure 
ongoing communication and necessary actions take place for seamless program operation. 

8. An understanding of the 2nd DRDP Child Outcomes Baseline Assessment report and School 
Readiness Goals for the 2023-2024 program so that Policy Council members are aware of agency 
wide progress data of children’s assessments.  

9. Received Informa�on on the importance of parent resiliency to assist parents crea�ng coping skills 
to make it through challenging �mes. 

10. An understanding of subcommittee updates so that representatives are informed of subcommittee 
discussions and outcomes. 

11. An understanding of Site Reports so that we may celebrate our co-parenting and partnership-
building efforts. 

12. Heard announcements so that we may be informed of Bureau news and/or available community 
resources. 

13. A Meeting Evaluation so that we may review our strengths and make any improvements as 
needed. 

 
Agenda 

What? 
(Content) 

How 
(Process) 

Who 
 

Time 
(Minutes) 

mailto:aaraujo@ehsd.cccounty.us


 

1. Review Desired 
Outcomes  

Present 
Clarify 

Check for understanding 

Tuliisa Miller 
Vice Chair 3 

Meeting Ground Rules 
Present 
Clarify 

Check for understanding 

Gabriela Gomar 
Parliamentarian 2 

2. Wellness Activity Present 
Clarify 

Juan Batiz  
Chair 7 

3. Correspondence Present 
Clarify 

Karen Medrano 
Secretary 2 

4. Public Comment Present Public 2 
5. Parent Recognition of Staff 

Excellence Award 
Recognition 

Present 
Clarify Juan Batiz                    

Chair 
7 

6. Action: 
Consider approval of 
February 21, 2024, March 
6, 2024 and March 18, 
2024 Policy Council 
Minutes 

Present 
Clarify 

Check for understanding 
Check for Agreement 

Karen Medrano 
Secretary 

15 
(3 minutes 
for roll call) 

7. Administrative Reports: 
CSB Executive Director 

Present 
Clarify 

Check for understanding 
Marla Stuart 10 

Administrative Reports: 
CSB Interim Director 

Present 
Clarify 

Check for understanding 

 
M.J. Robb 

 
5 

Administrative Reports: 
Division Manager 

Present 
Clarify 

Check for understanding 

 
Amy Wells 

 
5 

Administrative Reports: 
Fiscal 

Present 
Clarify 

Check for understanding 

 
Ali Vahidizadeh 

 
5 

8. Report:  
2nd DRDP and School 
Readiness Goals 

Present 
Clarify 

Check for understanding 
LaTanya Saucer  20 

9. Presentation: 
Parent Resiliency  

Present 
Clarify 

Check for understanding 

Early Childhood 
Mental Health 

Program ECMHP 
20 

10. Subcommittees Updates 
Present 
Clarify 

Check for understanding 

Juan Batiz  
Chair 3 

11. Site Reports 
Present 
Clarify 

Check for Understanding 
Site Representatives 5 

12. Announcements 
Present 
Clarify 

Check for understanding 
Ana Araujo 7 

13. Meeting Evaluation Plus/Delta Volunteer 2 

 
 

 



 

 PUBLIC ACCESS AND PUBLIC COMMENT INSTRUCTIONS:  
 

The public may attend this meeting in person at the above location. The public also may attend this meeting remotely via Zoom or call-in. Login 
information and call-in information is provided below. 

• HOW TO JOIN THE MEETING VIA ZOOM: 
Zoom Meeting ID: 870 4513 5129 Password: 826100 

• HOW TO JOIN THE MEETING VIA CALL-IN: 
Conference Call: USA 8882780254 (US Toll Free) Conference Code: 379008 

 
HOW TO PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Persons who wish to address the CSB Policy Council during public comment on matters within the jurisdiction of the CSB Policy Council that are 
not on the agenda, or who wish to comment with respect to an item on the agenda, may comment in person, via Zoom, or via call-in. Those 
participating in person should come to the podium when called upon. Those participating via Zoom should indicate they wish to speak by using 
the “raise your hand” feature in the Zoom app. Those calling in should indicate they wish to speak by pushing *9 on their phone. 

All public comments will be limited to 2 minutes per speaker. 

For assistance with remote access contact: (925) 864-0837 

Public comments may also be submitted before the meeting by email at aaraujo@ehsd.cccounty.us or by voicemail at (925) 864-0837. Comments 
submitted by email or voicemail will be included in the record of the meeting but will not be read or played aloud during the meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:aaraujo@ehsd.cccounty.us

